
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Turner-Smedley

AGENDA November 19, 2014

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Turner-Smedley

Presentation Commissioner Sabrena Turner-Smedley honoring Apison Elementary School Principal Ronald
Hughes named Tennessee's 2014-2015 Principal of the Year.

Presentation Commissioner Jim Fields honoring Signal Mountain Girls Golf Team for winning the A-AA State
Golf Championship.

Presentation Commissioner Jim Fields honoring Signal Mountain Girls Cross Country Team for winning the
A-AA State Championship.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - October 22, 2014

Minutes Agenda Session - October 22, 2014

Minutes Regular Meeting - November 5, 2014

Report Order of Designation - Planning Commission - Todd Leamon - November 10, 2014

Report Unaudited Financial Reports, Circuit Court Clerk, Clerk and Master, County Clerk and Register -
2014 Fiscal Year

Report Fee Office Reports

Report Quarterly Investment Report

Res. No. 1114-23 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the oaths of Judicial
Commissioner, and the oaths of Deputy Sheriff.

Res. No. 1114-9A A Resolution accepting the bid of CWC Office Furnishings for furniture for the Criminal Courts
amounting to $59,820.24 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-24 A Resolution granting abandonment of an unopened right-of-way located on the 11300 block of
Bates Road.

Res. No. 1114-25A A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District
to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 block of East Brainerd
Road.

Res. No. 1114-25B A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District
to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 block of East Brainerd
Road.

Res. No. 1114-25C A Resolution to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District
to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 block of East Brainerd
Road

Res. No. 1114-26 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of election ballots for the Tennessee State General and
Municipal Elections amounting to $48,127.35 from Mid-West Printing Company for the Election
Commission and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-27 A Resolution authorizing the Sheriff’s Office to purchase with Narcotic's Fund monies, at public
sale or auction, used vehicles to be utilized as unmarked or undercover vehicles; the number of
such vehicles to be purchased to be determined by the funds appropriated annually, not to
exceed $125,000 for FY 2014 and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.



Res. No. 1114-28 A Resolution accepting the bids of Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and John Deere Landscapes for
one (1) year contract pricing, beginning December 4, 2014, through December 3, 2015, for
Bermuda and Fescue sod for the Recreation Department and to authorize the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-29 A Resolution ratifying the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuel for the period of October 1, 2014,
through October 31, 2014, and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to
implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-30 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into a Interlocal Agreement with the City of
East Ridge to allow East Ridge City Court to use and share information with Hamilton County’s
Criminal Justice Information and Management System, CJUS, and to charge the City of East
Ridge for the costs incurred in providing the East Ridge City Court with access to CJUS and to
amend both the General Fund Revenue and Expenditure budgets by $25,000 for this project.

Res. No. 1114-31 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to execute a contract between the State of
Tennessee, Department of Health and Hamilton County, Tennessee, Health Services Division,
operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for the provision of a Rape
Prevention Education program using funds from the State of Tennessee, Department of Health
in the amount not to exceed $160,00.00 for the period beginning February 1, 2015, ending
January 31, 2019, which includes $16,700.00 that is already budgeted for the current fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015 .

Res. No. 1114-32 A Resolution accepting the bid of Parris Roofing and Sheet Metal Company, Inc. to re-roof the
Health Department Golley Auditorium amounting to $52,475.00 and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-33 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: Frostwood Lane, Dakota Sky Way and
Skybrook Drive as extended.

Res. No. 1114-34 A Resolution to authorize the County Mayor to enter into and execute an agreement with S&ME,
Inc, for geoenvironmental testing and inspection services necessary  for construction of the new
Ganns Elementary School for an amount not to exceed $233,600.00.

Res. No. 1114-35 A Resolution accepting the unit price bids of Telesource Services, LLC, A-1 Teletronics, Inc.,
Hello Direct, Optus, Inc., and Synergy Telecom, Inc. for Nortel telephone equipment for the
period beginning November 19, 2014 through November 18, 2015 for the Telecommunications
Department and to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 1114-36 A Resolution accepting the unit price bids of MXN Corporation, Personal Computer Systems,
Inc., and OPTUS, Inc., beginning November 19, 2014, through November 18, 2015, for HP data
communications equipment for the Telecommunications Department and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 

 
STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 22, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 22nd day of October, 2014, a Recessed 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit: -- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd welcomed Pastor Bruce Sloan, Ridgeview Baptist Church, 

who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Boyd led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

 1 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 

 
PRESENTATION – CRIMINAL COURT CLERK VINCE DEAN – OFFICER RICHARD 

ALEXANDER MEMORIAL HIGHWAY 

 

 Criminal Court Clerk Vince Dean reported that during his previous tenure with the 

House of Representatives, he had sponsored House Bill No.1030 in the 108th Session 

of the General Assembly.   The legislation designated a portion of Amnicola Highway 

from Curtain Pole Road to Crutchfield Street as “Officer Richard Alexander Memorial 

Highway.” Officer Alexander had served with the Chattanooga Police Department for 

twenty-two years before losing his life on October 5, 2000. Officer Alexander was on 

duty when his police vehicle was hit by another vehicle. 

 

Mr. Dean welcomed a group in attendance for today’s presentation, including 

Chattanooga Chief of Police Fred Fletcher, additional Police Department officers, as 

well as Joyce Alexander, Officer Alexander’s widow.  

 

 Police Chief Fletcher and Mayor Coppinger spoke of the sterling reputation and 

gentle spirit Officer Alexander exhibited.  Each expressed their gratitude for Officer 

Alexander’s service. 

 

 Ms. Alexander thanked the Commission and Mr. Dean for honoring her 

husband’s legacy.  She shook hands with members of the Commission and Mayor 

Coppinger at this time. 

 2 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1014-34  A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSALS OF 

THE COUNCIL FOR ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE SERVICES, INC. DBA CADAS, 

INC., HELEN ROSS MCNABB CENTER, INC., AND PARKRIDGE VALLEY 

HOSPITAL FOR RESIDENTIAL DRUG COURT TREATMENT SERVICES AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Development Director Dan Saieed reported that Drug Court Coordinator Elaine 

Kelly was attending an out-of-town training and unable to attend today’s meeting to 

speak on this item.  Upon her request, Mr. Saieed provided further explanation 

regarding this Resolution to the Commission.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Bankston, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1014-34.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 3 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 

 
 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting 

adjourned.   

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

                                                                           _______________________________    
   William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________  
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  October 22, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 22nd day of October, 2014, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman. County Clerk Bill 

Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered as 

follows: 

 

• A Trustee Excess Fee Report for September 2014 would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• A Trustee Monthly Report for September 2014 would be submitted as a matter of 
record. 

• Juvenile Court Clerk Reports for the months of June, July, and August 2014 
would be submitted as a matter of record. 

• Resolutions No. 1114-1 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolutions No. 1114-2 through 1114-6 were appointments, requiring no 
committee assignment. 

• Resolutions No. 1114-7 through 1114-9 and 1114-11 through 1114-21 were 
assigned to the Finance Committee, chaired by Commissioner Graham. 
 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Education Committee, announced that the 

committee would convene on Wednesday, November 5, at 8:30 am in the adjacent 

conference room.   

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 
 

Mayor Coppinger reported that there had been some confusion by members of 

the public regarding the similarly-named Human Services Division and Human 

Resources Department and the services each offered.  He stated it was the County’s 

intent to change the name of the Human Services Division to General Services Division 

in order to help avoid misunderstanding in the future.  The only change that would take 

effect as a result would be updated letterhead after current paper stock had been used 

and a name change in the phone book.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There were 

none. 

 

Chairman Fields noted there would not be a meeting next Wednesday, October 

29th due to the Tennessee County Services Association conference.  The next Regular 

Meeting would be held on Wednesday, November 5, 2014.   

 

Being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting adjourned until 

Wednesday, November 5th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

OCTOBER 22, 2014 
 
 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
           

_______  
Date      Clerk’s Initials 

 
 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  November 5, 2014 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 5th day of November, 2014, a Regular 

Meeting of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Jim Fields, Chairman.  County Clerk 

Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, constituting a 

quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Bankston, Commissioner Beck, 

Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner 

Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Turner-Smedley, and Chairman Fields.  

Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his  

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

 1 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley introduced Kaihan Strain, Spiritual Assembly of 

the Baha’is, who gave the invocation.  County Historian and Girls Preparatory School 

(GPS) History Department Chair Linda Mines led in the pledge to the flag. 

 

PRESENTATION – UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION ESSAY CONTEST 

 

 Mayor Coppinger presented a proclamation to three Hamilton County students 

who had recently been selected as winners of the Tennessee Valley Republican 

Women sponsored essay contest on the topic of the United States Constitution. These 

students included Hannah Geerlings, Hannah Thel, and Caroline West.  

 

Chairman Fields noted that this contest had been open to all private, public, and 

home school students in Hamilton County. He commended all students who participated 

in the contest for their hard work. 

 

 Ms. Mines expressed her appreciation to the Commission for their support of the 

school system.  She also congratulated the students in attendance on winning this 

award. 

 

 The students were personally congratulated and shook hands with members of 

the Commission.  

 

 2 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Commissioner Mackey also thanked Ms. Mines for her years of service and 

contributions in the community. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of October 8, 2014, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of October 8, 2014, the Regular Meeting of October 15, 2014, be approved, 

treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed.  The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd , “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. 

Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

TRUSTEE’S EXCESS FEE REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s excess fee report for September 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

 3 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

TRUSTEE’S MONTHLY REPORT 

 

The Trustee’s monthly report for September 2014 was submitted and made a 

matter of record.  

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORT 

 

The Juvenile Court Clerk Report for the months of June, July, and August 2014 

were submitted and made a matter of record.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-1 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-1.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 4 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-2 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF FIVE MEMBERS TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

BOARD OF EXAMINERS FOR GAS FITTERS & INSTALLERS FOR TERMS ENDING 

NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 

 

Resolution No. 1114-2 confirms the reappointments of Kenneth C. Ray, Emerson 

Ingram, Thomas Raulston, Beverly Johnson, and Bennie Kinsey to the Hamilton County 

Board of Examiners for Gas Fitters and Installers for four-year terms expiring November 

5, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, 

to adopt Resolution No. 1114-2.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted 

on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being 

present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  

Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-3 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

OF SIX MEMBERS BY THE COUNTY MAYOR TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

 5 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

CONTRACTORS BOARD OF APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS FOR TERMS ENDING 

NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 

 

Resolution No. 1114-3 confirms the reappointments of Kim Ray, Dennis Hasting, 

James Shropshire, Charles W. Evans, Jr., Wendall Whitmire (Alternate No. 1), and 

Timothy McClure (Alternate No. 2) to the Hamilton County Contractors Board of 

Appeals and Adjustments for four-year terms expiring November 5, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Bankston, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-3.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-4 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT 

BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF ONE MEMBER TO THE EMERGENCY 

COMMUNICATIONS DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR TERM ENDING 

NOVEMBER 5, 2018. 

 

 6 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Resolution No. 1114-4 confirms the reappointment of Mark Mathews to the 

Emergency Communications District Board of Directors for a four-year term expiring 

November 5, 2018. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-4.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-5 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT MEMBERS TO THE 

HAMILTON COUNTY AUDIT COMMITTEE. 

 

Resolution No. 1114-5 confirms the appointments of Chairman Jim Fields, 

Commissioner Chester Bankston, and Commissioner Warren Mackey to the Hamilton 

County Audit Committee for one-year terms expiring September 30, 2015. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-5.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

 7 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-6 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER AND 

REAPPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE SHERIFF'S CIVIL SERVICE ADVISORY 

BOARD FOR THREE (3) YEAR TERMS BEGINNING NOVEMBER 5, 2014 AND 

ENDING NOVEMBER 5, 2017. 

 

Resolution No. 1114-6 confirms the appointment of Bruce O’Neal and 

reappointment of John K. “Bucky” McCulley to the Sheriff’s Civil Service Advisory Board 

for three-year terms expiring November 5, 2017. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-6.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner 

 8 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 

0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

 Chairman Fields reported that Resolutions No. 1114-7 through 1114-9 and 1114-

11 through 1114-21 had been heard by the Finance Committee. He stated that 

Resolution No. 1114-10 had not been used. 

 

 Finance Committee Chairman Graham requested that Resolution No. 1114-9 go 

back to committee and not be voted on today.  He also asked that Resolution No. 1114-

21 be considered separately. 

 

 Chairman Fields indicated these requests would be honored. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-7 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MOUNTAIN 

VIEW FORD FOR ONE (1) CAB & CHASSIS FOR AN ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT 

AMOUNTING TO $23,565.00 FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY HUMANE 

EDUCATIONAL SOCIETY AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 

ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-8 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BOWIE 

INTERNATIONAL FOR ONE (1) ANIMAL CONTROL UNIT AMOUNTING TO 

$16,140.00 FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY HUMANE EDUCATIONAL SOCIETY 

 9 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-9 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CWC OFFICE 

FURNISHINGS FOR FURNITURE FOR THE CRIMINAL COURTS AMOUNTING TO 

$59,820.24 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-10 RESOLUTION NUMBER NOT USED 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-11 A RESOLUTION FOR THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER 

FIRE DEPARTMENT TO SCRAP AND SELL A 1992 FORD CROWN VICTORIA VIN # 

2FACP72W5NX252263 WITH MILEAGE OF 197,187 WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH 

HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL GOVERNMENT. MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE 

DEPARTMENT WILL USE THE PROCEEDS OF THE SELL OF THE SCRAP FOR 

THE FUTURE PURCHASE OF FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-12 A RESOLUTION FOR THE MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER 

FIRE DEPARTMENT TO SCRAP AND SELL A 1999 DODGE DURANGO VIN # 

1B4HS28Y3XF547576 WITH MILEAGE OF 188,000, WHICH IS CO-TITLED WITH 

HAMILTON COUNTY GENERAL GOVERNMENT. MOWBRAY VOLUNTEER FIRE 

 10 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

DEPARTMENT WILL USE THE PROCEEDS OF THE SELL OF THE SCRAP FOR 

THE FUTURE PURCHASE OF FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-13 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

CHATTANOOGA PAPER AND PACKAGING, INC., MOORE MEDICAL, LLC, 

MIDWEST MEDICAL SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC, MCKESSON MEDICAL-SURGICAL, 

INC., BUY INDIAN MEDICAL AND ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY FOR 

CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH 

NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR INFECTION CONTROL SUPPLIES FOR THE 

CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-14 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF MAC 

PAPERS FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, 

THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR PAPER AND PRINTING SUPPLIES FOR THE 

CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-15 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF STAPLES 

CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL, INC. AND QUILL CORPORATION FOR CONTRACT 

 11 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, 

FOR GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON 

COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-16 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

SCIENTIFIC SALES, INC., MCKESSON MEDICAL SURGICAL, INC., MOORE 

MEDICAL, LLC AND MIDWEST MEDICAL SUPPLY COMPANY, LLC FOR 

CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH 

NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR LABORATORY SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / 

HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 

MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-17 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

CHATTANOOGA PAPER AND PACKAGING, QUILL CORPORATION, KELSAN, 

INC., AND ROLL-AID INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY FOR CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, 

BEGINNING NOVEMBER 7, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 6, 2015, FOR 

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES FOR THE CHATTANOOGA / HAMILTON COUNTY 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 12 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-18 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 

BATTLEFIELD ABATEMENT FOR THE MARTIN LUTHER KING BUILDING 

ASBESTOS ABATEMENT AMOUNTING TO $30,210.50 AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-19 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE 

STABILIZATION REPAIRS OF CASH CANYON ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION 

INTERNATIONAL ON THE STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL NAILING FOR VARIOUS 

COUNTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-20 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE 

STABILIZATION REPAIRS OF MONTLAKE ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION 

INTERNATIONAL ON THE STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL NAILING FOR VARIOUS 

COUNTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1114-7, 1114-

8, and 1114-11 through 1114-20 and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval.  

 

 13 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 1114-7, 1114-8, and 1114-11 through 1114-20.  The foregoing 

Resolutions were unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members 

of the County Commission being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner 

Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”; Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman 

Fields, “Aye”. Total present – 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” 

votes – 0.   

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1114-21 A RESOLUTION FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF A 

PROPOSAL BY THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR 

THE CONSTRUCTION OF SR-317 FROM SR-321 (OOLTEWAH-RINGGOLD ROAD) 

TO NEAR LAYTON DRIVE IN HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 

Commissioner Graham provided details regarding Resolutions No. 1114-21 and 

stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

Commissioner Turner-Smedley stated this Resolution would accept a proposal 

for a road expansion in her district. She stated a desire that East Brainerd Road be 

expanded in the future. 

 

 14 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Turner-Smedley, seconded by Commissioner 

Graham, to adopt Resolution No. 1114-21.  The foregoing Resolution was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows:  Commissioner Bankston, “Aye”; Commissioner 

Beck, “Aye”; Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”; Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”; 

Commissioner Graham, “Aye”; Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”; Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”; Commissioner Turner-Smedley, “Aye”; and Chairman Fields, “Aye”. Total present 

– 9.  Total absent – 0.  Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for announcements from members of the Commission.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks announced that a number of Commissioners had 

attended the Tennessee County Services Association (TCSA) conference in Pigeon 

Forge the previous week. He reported that Commissioner Warren Mackey had been 

elected as the Tennessee County Commissioners Association (TCCA) President for the 

upcoming year.  

 

Commissioners Fairbanks, Turner-Smedley, and Beck congratulated 

Commissioner Mackey on his election. 

 

 15 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

Mayor Coppinger reported that he had attended a meeting on Friday, October 31 

at Memorial Hospital regarding Tennessee’s preparedness to treat Ebola or other 

diseases.  He stated that the meeting had been attended by Senators Bob Corker and 

Lamar Alexander, along with a number of other local hospital officials, Health Services 

Administrator Becky Barnes, and members of her staff.  

 

Mayor Coppinger commended Senator Corker, Senator Alexander, Ms. Barnes 

and all those involved for their active efforts to help ensure that Hamilton County and 

Tennessee were equipped in the event such a disease were to reach the community.  

 

Chairman Fields recognized School Board member Donna Horn, who was in 

attendance for today’s meeting. 

 

Chairman Fields announced Veterans Day will be observed on Tuesday, 

November 11th to honor those who served in the armed forces.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Fields asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

 Elgin Gray, a resident at 8435 Igou Gap Road, addressed the Commission 

regarding the posting of business signs in Hamilton County.  He reported that he 

 16 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

represented the company Cash for Junk Cars, which recycled junk, wrecked, or 

abandoned vehicles in the area. He stated the company had a local business license 

and a State recycling license.  

 

Mr. Gray expressed concern that unlicensed competitive companies in the City of 

Chattanooga and in the County were posting signs on telephone poles, trees, and right-

of-ways. He cited another local competitor as an example. He showed pictures on his 

laptop to the Commission of instances where he felt sign ordinances were being 

violated.  He sated he had been told by County Building Inspection Director David 

Thorne that it was illegal for signs to be nailed to telephone poles and trees.  

 

 Attorney Taylor indicated that the City of Chattanooga had ordinances in place 

regarding signage which were currently enforced.  The County did not currently have 

authority regarding signage on private property. He stated it was his understanding that 

Highway Department staff could remove signs on right-of-ways if it was determined they 

could possibly impede motorist’s visibility. 

 

 Public Works Administrator Todd Leamon confirmed this to be true. 

 

 Upon questioning by Commissioner Beck, Mr. Gray responded that he had 

removed numerous signs throughout the County from a particular competitor. He would 

not publically reveal the names of those he thought were in violation.  Mr. Gray stated 

 17 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

that if Commissioner Beck would like, he could provide him with information regarding 

this competitor after today’s meeting.  Commissioner Beck asked that he provide that 

information to Commission staff after the meeting. 

 

 Commissioner Beck shared a concern that this issue was being brought before 

the Commission by a representative of a certain business and could appear the motive 

was to directly affect another competitor. 

 

 YMCA Community Action Project (Y-CAP) Regional Director Joe Smith 

addressed the Commission regarding the USA national Olympic boxing team qualifier 

event to be held at the Chattanooga Convention Center from November 30 to 

December 6. He stated that the event would have a significant positive economic impact 

to the County.  He estimated 1,200 boxers, in addition to coaches, Olympic officials, and 

visitors would be staying in the area during that time.  He asked that the Commissioners 

consider financially supporting the event.  

 

Upon questioning by Commissioner Graham, Mr. Smith stated that approximately 

$28,000 in total funding was required to host the event.  He noted that $20,000 had 

already been raised and $8,000 in funding was still needed. He added that the initial 

$100,000 bid fee had been waived to attract this special event. Mr. Smith also informed 

the Commission that half of the gate fees would benefit the Y-CAP organization. 

 

 18 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
NOVEMBER 5, 2014 

 

 Several members of the Commission expressed their gratitude to Mr. Smith for 

his numerous contributions to the County.  Several Commissioners stated their 

willingness to support this cause. 

 

There being no further business, Chairman Fields declared the meeting in recess 

until Wednesday, November 12, 2014 at 9:30 AM.  

 

Respectfully submitted: 

 
      

____________________________________    
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

Approved: 
   

_______   
Date     Clerk’s Initials 
 

 19 























































































No. 1114-23 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER, 
AND THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFF. 

 
  BE IT RESOLVED, By the Board of Commissioners, Hamilton County, Tennessee, in 

Session Assembled:-- 
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the records 

of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled "HAMILTON 
COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS" have duly applied for the positions 
so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office the persons named on 

the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER" have taken 
the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the persons 

named on the attached listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFF" have taken 
the oath of office; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 
 1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY 

PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants therefor; and 
 
 2. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF JUDICIAL 

COMMISSIONER” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 3. That the persons named on the listing labeled "OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFF" are 

accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 
 4. That each such person named on the listings hereinabove mentioned (which listings are 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have been 
individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER PASSAGE. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 















































No. 1114-9A 

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF CWC OFFICE FURNISHINGS FOR 
FURNITURE FOR THE CRIMINAL COURTS AMOUNTING TO $59,820.24 AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for office furniture for 
the Criminal Courts; and, 

WHEREAS, this contract unit pricing will allow other departments to buy off contract for 
twelve months; and, 

WHEREAS, the bid from CWC Office Furnishings amounting to $59,820.24 was 
considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 

WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 
department. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

That the bid of CWC Office Furnishings for furniture for the Criminal Courts amounting to 
$59,820.24 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing 
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: ☐

Rejected: 
☐

 

Approved: ☐

County Clerk 

Vetoed: 
☐

County Mayor 

November 19, 2014 
Date 































No. 1114-24 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  (P.C. NO. MR-2014-104) 
 

A RESOLUTION GRANTING ABANDONMENT OF 
AN UNOPENED RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED ON 

THE 11300 BLOCK OF BATES ROAD 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Ronnie L. Chapman petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Regional Planning Commission to grant abandonment of an unopened right-of-way 
located on the 11300 Block of Bates Road, and said Planning Commission after 
hearing recommended that this petition be approved; and 
 WHEREAS, Ronnie L. Chapman requested that the County Commission 
consider said petition and notice has been published in a newspaper in general 
circulation in Hamilton County that the County Commission will hold a public hearing 
on November 19, 2014, concerning the passage of this Resolution as required by law, 
and such having been held. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County be amended to 
rezone from abandonment of an unopened right-of-way located on the 11300 Block of Bates 
Road. Abandonment of area totaling 1115.24 square feet, beginning 47.64 feet 
northwest of the northernmost corner of Tax Map 161-076, thence southwest 76.67 
feet, thence north 35.01 feet, thence east 64.15 feet to the point of beginning, being of 
portion of the property described in Deed Book 6996, Page 165, ROHC. Adjacent to 
Tax Map 161-076 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 













No. 1114-25A 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
`   (P.C. NO. 2014-119) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED ON 

THE 9700 BLOCK OF EAST BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC 
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District to C-
2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 Block of East 
Brainerd Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this 
petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC                                     
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on November 19, 2014, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business 
Commercial District to C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on 
the 9700 Block of East Brainerd Road. An unplatted tract of land located on the 9700 
Block of East Brainerd Road, beginning at the northeast corner of Tax Map 172-056 
and going 401.85 feet southwest, thence 228.84 feet east, thence 1266.93 feet 
southwest, thence 1260.39 feet northwest, thence 1549.83 feet northeast, thence 
1349. 81 feet southeast to the point of beginning, being the properties described in 
Deed Book 7292, Page 572, Deed Book 10249, Page 901, and Deed Book 2842, 



 

 

Page 978, ROHC.  Tax Maps 172-056, 056.01, and 064 as shown on the attached 
map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







































No. 1114-25B 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  (P.C. NO. 2014-119) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED ON 

THE 9700 BLOCK OF EAST BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC 
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District to C-
2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 Block of East 
Brainerd Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this 
petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC                                     
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on November 19, 2014, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended, subject to: 
 1) Sidewalks will be placed along the interior edge of a bio-swale or 

landscaped buffer area along Ooltewah-Ringgold Road and East 
Brainerd Road. 

 2) All internal streets and drives will have a sidewalk with a minimum 
depth of five (5) feet. 

 3) Internal transportation network shall allow for connections to future 
development on site and adjacent parcels in the future. 



 4) Dumpsters servicing the site shall be located behind proposed 
buildings and screened.  

 5) Maintain the existing natural vegetation and trees for a minimum 
depth of 100 feet where the property abuts parcels 172-068, 172-
069, 172-073.03 and 172-073.  This buffer shall include 
supplemental evergreen trees as specified by the Landscape 
Regulations in Article V, Section 307-D of the Hamilton County 
Zoning Regulations, in order to maintain a continuous sight 
obscuring screen.  This buffer can be crossed only by pedestrian or 
street/drive connections to adjoining properties. 

 6) All improvements on East Brainerd Road will require approval from 
the Hamilton County Engineering Department.  Improvements 
include:  1.  Right of Way in the amount of 40 feet from the 
centerline shall be dedicated to Hamilton County Government.  2.  
The existing drainage ditch line shall be relocated as required to the 
south to allow a minimum 4 foot paved shoulder.  The drainage 
ditch may be piped along the shoulder or in the areas adjacent to 
driveways to allow for additional backfilled areas.  3.  An eastbound 
right turn lane (minimum 100’) and westbound left turn lane 
(minimum 100’) into the proposed development will be required 
during construction of phase one. 

 7) All proposed or required improvements on Ooltewah-Ringgold Road, 
State Route 321, are subject to approval by the Tennessee 
Department of Transportation (TDOT).  If acceptable to TDOT, the 
middle entrance to the development (south entrance of phase one) 
and the traffic signal, if warranted, will be required during 
construction of phase one. 

 8) A.  Phase I (2016) –  Ooltewah‐Ringgold Rd.: 
  Will provide a southbound left turn lane (100’ minimum) into the 

North entrance. 
  Will provide a southbound left turn lane (100’ minimum) into the 

Middle entrance. 
  Will provide a northbound right turn lane (minimum 100’ full width) 

into Middle entrance. 
 9) Phase II (2018):  None 
 10) Phase III (2020) – 
  Signalized intersection at the Middle Entrance on Ooltewah‐Ringgold 

Road. 
  Northbound right turn lane (100 ft. minimum full width storage) at 



the existing signal at East Brainerd/ Ooltewah‐Ringgold Rd. 
 11) Phase IV (2022) 
  Ooltewah‐Ringgold Rd.: 
  A southbound left turn (100’ minimum) into the South entrance. 
  A northbound right turn lane (minimum 100’ lane) into the south 

entrance. 
  East Brainerd Rd. entrance: 
  An eastbound right turn lane (minimum 100’) 
  A westbound left turn lane into the development (minimum 100’) 
  Developer can provide ROW for E. Brainerd Rd. future signal 

improvement (75’ WBL turn lane). 
 
 12)  Natural Buffer 
  To protect the privacy and view of the neighbors the developer 

agrees to maintain the existing natural vegetation and trees for a 
distance of 100’ from the east boundary and 80’ from the south 
boundary. These buffers will be supplemented with evergreen trees 
planted in areas as required to achieve and maintain this protection. 

 13)  Clear Cutting 
  No mass clear cutting to occur onsite. Clear cutting to part of the 

development plan in constructing the development in phases as 
construction occurs and is to be limited to only that necessary to 
achieve the phase(s) to be constructed. All areas will be stabilized 
with ground cover established prior to occupancy. Erosion control 
measures and ground cover requirements shall be per those set by 
TDEC and Hamilton County Water Quality Department. 

 14)  Lighting Concerns 
  The proposed lighting will be designed to mitigate light trespass, 

over illumination, glare and light clutter. This will include cutoff 
fixtures and reduced pole height, and dark sky lighting and directed 
down and away from adjoining residential areas. Lighting shall be of 
a type that minimizes glare and nuisance impacts on adjoining 
residential properties.  All interior, exterior and sign lighting is fully 
lighted the intensity of lighting as measured by a light meter with a 
cosine corrector shall not exceed 2.0 foot-candles along the 
property line of the subject premises adjoining residential homes 
unless shielded by opaque fencing. 

 15)  Protection of waters of the state and wetlands 
  All waters of the state and wetlands will be protected by TDEC and 



Hamilton County Water Quality. A 30 foot bio‐swale and or / 
landscaped area will be provided along Ooltewah Ringgold Road 
and East Brainerd Road. Provide calculations indicating the Site’s 
natural water run‐off in its current condition compared to the water 
run‐off for the developed Site. All Storm Water shall be treated 
through the use of a bio‐swale or wet detention or other approved 
system prior to leaving the site. System shall not allow storm water 
to leave the site at a faster rate than it does in its current and 
natural state. In the event there are retention ponds utilized for 
stormwater management the System shall provide for mosquito 
abatement by implementing the use of fountains and/or waterfalls 
in wet detention ponds or other system or technique proven in the 
industry. Applicant’s plans, drawings, and specifications for such 
system shall be stamped by a licensed engineer fully qualified in the 
design, engineering, and operation of such systems. 

 16)  Signage 
  A signature “village” clock tower will be located the intersection of 

Ooltewah Ringgold Road and East Brainerd Road which will include 
the primary signage for the development and will be built before a 
maximum of 40,000 sq. ft. of building area will be constructed. 
Specifically prohibited will be off premises signs (bill boards) and 
neon signs. Signs should be of consistent design. 

 17)  Building Design 
  The design of the development will be a village theme. The intent is 

to reduce the proportions of the buildings to a more human scale. 
Buildings walls facing public roads: Shall consist of a building bay 
that is a maximum of 30 feet in width and shall be visually 
established by architectural features such as column, ribs, pilasters, 
piers, changes in wall plane, changes in texture or materials and 
masonry fenestration pattern no less than twelve inches in width. 
Walls exceeding 30 feet in length shall include at least one change 
in wall plane, such as projections or recesses, having a depth of at 
least three percent of the entire length of the façade and extending 
at least twenty percent of the entire length of the façade. Allowance 
for area will be made for signage as permitted by the sign 
ordinance. Walls shall be subdivided and proportioned using 
features such as windows, entrances, arcades, arbors, awnings, 
trellises or alternate architectural detail that define human scale 
along no less than 60 percent of the wall. The composition of the 



building shall present a clearly recognizable base, middle and top or 
a clearly defined alternative building composition. The design to 
achieve unity through compatible materials and colors with building 
materials that are durable, attractive and have low maintenance 
and utilize colors that reflect natural tones with no material to be 
used on more than 50 percent.  All buildings in the core to be 
constructed of building materials from the color palette approved 
for the center.  The village theme to be used throughout including 
outlying pad sites.  Roof top equipment to be screened.  Materials 
prohibited include split shakes, vinyl siding, metal siding, painted 
block. 

 18)  Prohibited Uses 
  Storage, car lots, wrecker service, double‐wide or manufactured 

homes, night clubs, adult‐oriented business, tattoo parlors, check 
cashing, pawn, apartments, free standing residential condos, 
multifamily, fire hall, police station, ambulance station, temporary 
structures, commercial dairies. Dumpster use only 7am‐6pm. 
Restrictions to apply to entire 51+ acre tract. If any of these 
restrictions/conditions conflict with any zoning requirements for 
Hamilton County, the most restrictive requirement shall apply. 

  Construction for exterior work will be limited from 6 am to 7 pm or 
nightfall. 

 19)  Community Enhancement 
  Sidewalks will be placed along the interior edge of a bio‐swale and 

or / landscaped area along Ooltewah‐Ringgold Road and East 
Brainerd Road and will connect to the interior buildings. A total 
minimum of 5% of the total site area shall be provided as green 
space, open areas and public gathering areas within the parking 
areas. These areas will include parking lot landscaping, patio or 
plaza with seating, mini‐parks, squares, greens, customer 
walkways, water feature, clock tower, public art or any other similar 
deliberately shaped area and/or focal feature that enhance the 
development and serves as a gathering place. These areas will be 
built before a maximum of 150,000 sq ft of building are of building 
area will be constructed. All trees to be minimum 2” caliper with the 
exception of the boulevard which will be 3” caliper. One tree will be 
planted for every 20 parking spaces with a maximum of 80 feet 
between trees. Any diseased or dead trees or other plant material 
installed on the Site as a Condition or as per the requirements of 



 

 

the current County Landscape Ordinance shall be replaced in a 
timely manner with a healthy tree or indigenous vegetation of the 
same or similar species. All installed landscape materials shown on 
approved plans shall be maintained in healthy condition or replaced 
for the life of this project.  A single tree species cannot make up 
more than 35% of the total trees to be replanted per the County 
Landscape Ordinance. 

 20)  Building Size 
  The development will not exceed 350,000 total square feet. The 

maximum size of the largest building will be 150,000 square feet. 
Height not to exceed 35ft and/ or 2 stories. 

to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District to 
C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 Block of East 
Brainerd Road. An unplatted tract of land located on the 9700 Block of East Brainerd 
Road, beginning at the northeast corner of Tax Map 172-056 and going 401.85 feet 
southwest, thence 228.84 feet east, thence 1266.93 feet southwest, thence 1260.39 
feet northwest, thence 1549.83 feet northeast, thence 1349. 81 feet southeast to the 
point of beginning, being the properties described in Deed Book 7292, Page 572, 
Deed Book 10249, Page 901, and Deed Book 2842, Page 978, ROHC.  Tax Maps 
172-056, 056.01, and 064 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







































No. 1114-25C 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  (P.C. NO. 2014-119) 
 

A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 
AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 

COMMERCIAL DISTRICT TO C-2 LOCAL BUSINESS 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED ON 

THE 9700 BLOCK OF EAST BRAINERD ROAD 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC 
petitioned the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission to 
rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District to C-
2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 Block of East 
Brainerd Road, and said Planning Commission after hearing recommended that this 
petition be approved; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Neuhoff Taylor Architects/Barbara Moss BeVille/Ant Group, LLC                                     
requested that the County Commission consider said petition and notice has been 
published in a newspaper in general circulation in Hamilton County that the County 
Commission will hold a public hearing on November 19, 2014, concerning the 
passage of this Resolution as required by law, and such having been held. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE 
BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED:  That the zoning regulations of Hamilton County 
be amended, subject to: 
1.     Concrete sidewalks, minimum width of 5 feet, shall be placed along the interior 

edge of the landscaped buffer along Ooltewah Ringgold Road and East Brainerd 
Road.  Sidewalks shall be outside the right of way. 

2.     Concrete sidewalks, minimum width of 5 feet, shall be placed along all interior 
and private streets and drives. 

3.     Dumpsters serving the site shall be located behind buildings and screened on all 
four sides with landscaping and/or fencing. 



 

 

4.     Existing natural vegetation and trees shall be preserved and protected for a 
distance of 100 feet from the east boundary and 80 feet from the south 
boundary. 

5.     All improvements on East Brainerd Road will require approval from the Hamilton 
County Engineering Department.  Improvements include:  a. Right of Way in the 
amount of 40 feet from the centerline shall be dedicated to Hamilton County 
Government.  b. The existing drainage ditch line shall be relocated as required to 
the south to allow a minimum 4 foot paved shoulder.  The drainage ditch may be 
piped along the along the shoulder or in the areas adjacent to driveways to allow 
for additional backfilled areas.  c. An eastbound right turn lane (minimum 100’) 
and westbound left turn lane (minimum 100’) into the proposed development will 
be required during construction of phase one. 

6.      All proposed or required improvements on Ooltewah Ringgold Road, State 
Route 321, are subject to approval by the Tennessee Department of 
Transportation (TDOT).  If acceptable to TDOT, the middle entrance to the 
development (south entrance of phase one) and the traffic signal, if warranted, 
will be required during construction of phase one. 

7.     All exterior pole lighting shall be a maximum of 30 feet in height. 
8.     Off premises (bill boards) and neon signs shall be prohibited. 
9.     Storage, car lots, wrecker service, double‐wide or manufactured homes, night 

clubs, adult‐oriented business, tattoo parlors, check cashing, pawn, apartments, 
free standing residential condos, multifamily, temporary structures, and 
commercial dairies are prohibited uses. 

10.    The buildings within the development shall not exceed 350,000 total square feet, 
150,000 maximum building size, or 35 feet and/or 2 stories in height. 

 
to rezone from A-1 Agricultural District and C-2 Local Business Commercial District to 
C-2 Local Business Commercial District, property located on the 9700 Block of East 
Brainerd Road. An unplatted tract of land located on the 9700 Block of East Brainerd 
Road, beginning at the northeast corner of Tax Map 172-056 and going 401.85 feet 
southwest, thence 228.84 feet east, thence 1266.93 feet southwest, thence 1260.39 
feet northwest, thence 1549.83 feet northeast, thence 1349. 81 feet southeast to the 
point of beginning, being the properties described in Deed Book 7292, Page 572, 
Deed Book 10249, Page 901, and Deed Book 2842, Page 978, ROHC.  Tax Maps 
172-056, 056.01, and 064 as shown on the attached map. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT 
FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







































No. 1114-26 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF ELECTION BALLOTS FOR THE 
TENNESSEE STATE GENERAL AND MUNICIPAL ELECTIONS AMOUNTING TO 
$48,127.35 FROM MID-WEST PRINTING COMPANY FOR THE ELECTION 
COMMISSION AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, ballots were purchased for the Tennessee State General and Municipal 

Elections on November 4, 2014, amounting to $48,127.35 for the Election 
Commission; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the amount of $48,127.35 is considered economically fair; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the purchase of ballots for the Tennessee State General and Municipal Elections from 
Mid-West Printing Company amounting to $48,127.35 is hereby approved, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







No. 1114-27 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO PURCHASE, AT 
PUBLIC SALE OR AUCTION, USED VEHICLES TO BE UTILIZED AS 
UNMARKED OR UNDERCOVER VEHICLES; THE NUMBER OF SUCH VEHICLES 
TO BE PURCHASED TO BE DETERMINED BY THE FUNDS APPROPRIATED 
ANNUALLY, NOT TO EXCEED $125,000 FOR FY 2014 AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT 
THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary in law enforcement operations to utilize undercover or unmarked 
vehicles, and it is not practical to obtain used vehicles through the bid process; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the purchase of used vehicles in accordance with 
applicable provisions of the Hamilton County Purchasing Rules and State of Tennessee legal 
statutes is an economical means to obtain vehicles for this purposes; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted monies in the Narcotics Fund that are 
available to the Sheriff’s Office. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the Sheriff’s Office is hereby authorized to purchase, at public sale or auction and in 
compliance with applicable provisions of Hamilton County’s Purchasing Rules and State of 
Tennessee law, used vehicles to be utilized as unmarked or in its undercover operations in an 
amount that is not to exceed $125,000 of currently budgeted Narcotics Fund monies and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 



No. 1114-28 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF MIDDLE TENNESSEE TURF, INC. AND 
JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING 
DECEMBER 4, 2014, THROUGH DECEMBER 3, 2015, FOR BERMUDA AND FESCUE 
SOD FOR THE RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

pricing for Bermuda and Fescue sod for the Recreation Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids from Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and John Deere Landscapes were 

considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Middle Tennessee Turf, Inc. and John Deere Landscapes for one (1) year 
contract pricing, beginning December 4, 2014, through December 3, 2015, for Bermuda and 
Fescue sod for the Recreation Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 



























No. 1114-29 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE 
PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1, 2014, THROUGH OCTOBER 31, 2014, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 
COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Purchasing Department was authorized to make purchases of petroleum products 

on the open market; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the following purchases were made between October 1, 2014, through October 31, 

2014.  
 
 October 2, 2014, $20,719.78 for 8,409 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.4640 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc.  
 
 October 3, 2014, $1,711.80 for 600 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.8530 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 3, 2014, $8,610.57 for 3,161 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.724002 

per gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 3, 2014, $20,203.22 for 8,411 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.4020 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
  
 October 7, 2014, $2,728.86 for 988 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.7620 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 9, 2014, $19,228.59 for 7,356 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.6140008 per gallon 

from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 10, 2014, $16,250.02 for 7,431 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.186788 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
  
 October 14, 2014, $19,297.31 for 7,468 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.5840 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 



 

 

 
 
 
 October 15, 2014, $1,329.50 for 500 gallons of regular unleaded gasoline at 2.6590 per 

gallon from Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 20, 2014, $18,447.92 for 7,243 gallons of diesel fuel at 2.5470 per gallon from 

Jat Oil and Supply, Inc. 
 
 October 22, 2014, $17,493.91 for 8,169 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.1415 per gallon 

from Collins Oil Company, Inc. 
 
 October 23, 2014, $16,494.10 for 7,981 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.066671 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 October 24, 2014, $16,984.95 for 7,966 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.13218 per gallon 

from Parman Lubricants. 
 
 October 30, 2014, $17,260.20 for 8,028 gallons of E10 gasoline at 2.1500 per gallon 

from Sweetwater Valley Oil Company, Inc.  
  
  
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That the above purchases be ratified in the best interest of Hamilton County, and the County Mayor is 
authorized to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







No. 1114-30 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
WITH THE CITY OF EAST RIDGE TO ALLOW EAST RIDGE CITY COURT TO USE AND SHARE 
INFORMATION WITH HAMILTON COUNTY’S CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT 
SYSTEM, CJUS, AND TO CHARGE THE CITY OF EAST RIDGE FOR THE COSTS INCURRED IN PROVIDING 
THE EAST RIDGE CITY COURT WITH ACCESS TO CJUS AND TO  AMEND BOTH THE GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE BUDGETS BY $25,000 FOR THIS PROJECT.  
 
Whereas,  the County’s Criminal Justice Information and Management System, CJUS, has   
   a complete court records system, and;  
 
Whereas,  CJUS can be customized to assist East Ridge City Court, and; 
 
Whereas,  it is beneficial to all members of the Criminal Justice community to share   
   information with each other, and; 
 
Whereas,  this arrangement would allow East Ridge City Court and the existing CJUS   
   community to view the information entered by all participating entities, and; 
 
Whereas,  this course of action will be less expensive to the East Ridge City Court than an   
   independent direction.  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED THAT: 
 

The County Mayor be authorized to enter into a interlocal agreement with the City of East Ridge to allow 
East Ridge City Court access to use and share information with Hamilton County’s Criminal Justice 
Information and Management System, CJUS, and to charge the City of East Ridge for the costs incurred 
in providing the East Ridge City Court with access to CJUS and to amend both the General Fund 
Revenue and Expenditure budgets by $25,000 for this project 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, 
THAT PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 



 
Hamilton County Tennessee and City of East Ridge, Tennessee. 

 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

FOR CRIMINAL JUSTICE APPLICATION 
 
I. Purpose 
In an effort to assist East Ridge City Court with their records keeping and to improve the 
information exchange between East Ridge City Court and Hamilton County’s Criminal Justice 
System, the City of East Ridge (hereinafter referred to as “East Ridge”) hereby enters into this 
Interlocal Agreement  with Hamilton County, TN (hereinafter referred to as “County”) to share 
software and information in the County’s Criminal Justice Information and Management 
System (hereinafter referred to as “CJUS”).  
 
The benefits of this agreement are to: (1) provide East Ridge with an information system that is 
less expensive and more easily customized to their need than other systems, CJUS already 
being a part of the public domain and (2) create a common information sharing model within 
Hamilton County’s Criminal Justice community. 
 
II. Responsibilities 
A general list of responsibilities follows: 
 
County Responsibilities. 

1. The County will provide technical assistance creating the infrastructure necessary for this 
application to run, preserve the data and communicate with the County’s CJUS. 
2. The County will deliver to East Ridge and implement the CJUS application software 
appropriate for their needs. 
3. The County will customize this software as necessary to make it fully functional to meet 
East Ridge’s requirements. 
4. The County will provide training and assistance to East Ridge to use the software 
appropriately. 
5. The County will provide necessary data storage to East Ridge to facilitate the exchange 
and use of information from Hamilton County and from East Ridge. 
6. The County will be as responsive as possible to East Ridge request for assistance during 
the life-cycle of this agreement. 
7. The County will treat the information East Ridge enters into the CJUS with the same 
care and privacy considerations that is accorded to all CJUS data.  
8. The County will assist East Ridge to establish continuation procedures for emergency 
situations. 
9. The County will provide data conversion services for all data on East Ridge’s current 
system. 
10. The County will provide updates to East Ridge as CJUS changes and develops. 
11. The County will provide East Ridge with a detailed invoice on a monthly basis. 



 
East Ridge Responsibilities. 

1. East Ridge will work closely with the County to design and setup the infrastructure 
necessary to successfully run CJUS. 
2. East Ridge, in cooperation with the County I.T.S., will develop and follow policies 
designed for data accuracy, security and privacy in the CJUS. 
3. East Ridge will participate as a member of the CJUS community. 
4. East Ridge will provide the participation necessary to get the data conversion and system 
implementation done as quickly and efficiently as possible. 
5. East Ridge will act as the intermediary with the current vendor to obtain existing data 
and data documentation. 
6. After implementation East Ridge will request changes via an agreed upon method with 
ample time to accomplish them. 
7. After implementation East Ridge will accept and allow install of updates to CJUS 
maintaining the most current release. 
8. East Ridge will reimburse the County for all expenses including personnel time, 
equipment and storage and infrastructure use. 

 
III. Terms 
 
This agreement will be continue as maintenance and support after the initial implementation is 
complete until terminated by either party. Cost of labor and infrastructure will be renegotiated 
each year. 
 
Either party may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other.  
Such notice shall be sent by certified mail return receipt requested to the Mayor for Hamilton 
County, Tennessee and the Manager of the City of East Ridge. 
 
As both parties are governmental entities neither party is responsible and liable for the acts and 
or omissions of the other. 
 
Both parties acknowledge that the implementation of this agreement is subject to funds being 
available for both parties. 
 
Attachment includes definitions that are a part of this agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    
   11-3-2014 

Hamilton County Mayor  
 
Signature: _____________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 

City of East Ridge 
 
Signature: _____________________ 
 
Date: _________________________ 
 



Attachment for Interlocal Agreement for Criminal Justice Application. 
 
EAST RIDGE INFRASTRUCTURE. 
Should include: 
 Good connection to the Internet, a minimum of 100MB. 
 PC (s) that have at least 4G RAM, using Windows 7 or later. 
 Windows Terminal Server License for each PC. ($55 each) 
 Cisco SA505 equivalent firewall appliance. ($500) 
 
SECURITY POLICIES. 
 These should demonstrate appropriate password security, respect for data ownership and 
 privacy, and limited physical access to the CJUS related infrastructure. 
 
CJUS COMMUNITY. 

The CJUS Community consist of all entities, Sheriff, Criminal Court Clerk, the County Mayor’s office, 
municipal courts, etc, that use the County’s CJUS. Their concern is for the integrity of the system, the 
data and the processes followed. There are occasional meetings to communicate issues or resolve 
problems. 

 
EXPENSES. 

County personnel rate is depends on the salary of each individual working on this project for fiscal year 
2104-15 the highest rate is $73 per hour. 

   
 
TIME ESTIMATES. 
 The County expects to be able to start this implementation by December 1, 2014.  
 Implementation and data conversion should take 24  weeks. 
  
MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT. 

Infrastructure expenses will include share of cost for network, processing and data storage.  
 Infrastructure cost for fiscal year 2015-16  will be $250.  

Subsequent customizations will be estimated on a case by case basis. 
Problem resolution will be addressed within a maximum of two hours and resolution as soon as it can be 
done. 

 Maintenance and support will be billed by the hour based on each person’s salary. 
 
WORK PLAN. 
 HCITS staff will meet with East Ridge staff and learn how their work is done. 
 Receive copy of existing data and develop conversion routine. 
 Change CJUS to accept and differentiate between governing bodies. 
 Create versions of CJUS programs that East Ridge will be using. 
 Create reports for East Ridge’s use. 
 Install the application for East Ridge and train the users. 
 Choose implementation date. 
 Create a new current copy of East Ridge’s data and convert it to CJUS. 
 Implement the application. 
 



No. 1114-31 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE STATE OF 
TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, HEALTH SERVICES 
DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FOR THE 
PROVISION OF A RAPE PREVENTION EDUCATION PROGRAM USING FUNDS FROM THE STATE OF 
TENNESSEE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $160,00.00 FOR THE PERIOD 
BEGINNING FEBRUARY 1, 2015, ENDING JANUARY 31, 2019, WHICH INCLUDES $16,700.00 THAT IS ALREADY 
BUDGETED FOR THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2015 . 
 
WHEREAS,   the State of Tennessee, Department of Health has allocated $160,000.00 to the Health  
                       Services Division of Hamilton County, Tennessee, operating as the Chattanooga-Hamilton  

        County Health Department, for the purpose of providing rape prevention education services;     
        and 

 
WHEREAS,   these services will include: strengthening individual knowledge and skills, promoting 
                       community education, educating  providers, fostering coalitions; activities to promote  
                       changes in organizational practices; and educating key community leaders to treat sexual 
                       violence as a public health priority; and              
 
WHEREAS,   the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department is seeking to continue a contractual 
                       arrangement with the State of Tennessee, Department of Health for the provision of rape 
                       prevention education for an amount not to exceed $160,000.00 for the period beginning 
                       February1, 2015, ending January 31, 2019, which includes $16,700.00 that is already    
                       budgeted for the current fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
          That the County Mayor be authorized to execute a contract between the State of Tennessee,  
                        Department of Health and the Health Services Division, Hamilton County, Tennessee, doing  
                        business as the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Health Department for the provision of rape 
                        prevention education services for an amount not to exceed $160,000.00, of which 16,700.00        
                        is already included in the revenue and expense budget for the Health Department for the  
                        current fiscal year, and with the remaining funds to be included in subsequent revenue and 
                        expense budgets through January 31, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE 
PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 



































































No. 1114-32 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PARRIS ROOFING AND SHEET METAL 
COMPANY, INC. TO RE-ROOF THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT GOLLEY AUDITORIUM 
AMOUNTING TO $52,475.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement to re-roof the Golley 

Auditorium at the Health Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Parris Roofing and Sheet Metal Company, Inc. amounting to 

$52,475.00 was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Parris Roofing and Sheet Metal Company, Inc. to re-roof the Health 
Department Golley Auditorium amounting to $52,475.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being 
the lowest and best bid received, and the County Mayor is authorized to sign any contracts 
necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 







No. 1114-33 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: Frostwood Lane, Dakota Sky Way and 
Skybrook Drive as extended. 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Providence 

Point Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County 
Division of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision 
Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 



ROAD NAME                          DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Frostwood Lane Frostwood Lane is in the 2nd   Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Providence 
Point Subdivision on State Tax Map Number 104, 
leading from Skybrook Drive 0.09 Miles south to a 
turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” stone base, 
a 2” plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, and 
was built by Brown Brothers Construction and 
Spears Hopkins Paving Company for the Developer 
Stonefort Ooltewah LLC. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
Dakota Sky Way Dakota Sky Way is in the 2nd   Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Providence 
Point Subdivision on State Tax Map Number 104, 
leading from Frostwood Lane 0.13 Miles east to a 
temporary turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” 
stone base, a 2” plant mix pavement with concrete 
curbs, and was built by Brown Brothers 
Construction and Spears Hopkins Paving Company 
for the Developer Stonefort Ooltewah LLC. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
ROAD NAME                                                       DESCRIPTION 
 
   
Skybrook Drive Resolution No. 109-14 dated January 7, 2009 shows 

the mileage of Skybrook Drive as being 0.30 miles, 
described as leading from Roy Lane; and, whereas, 



a new extension of Skybrook Drive was constructed 
leading from the existing Skybrook Drive east 0.30 
miles to a temporary turnaround, has a 50' right-of-
way, a 8" stone base, a 2" plant mix pavement with 
concrete curbs, and was built by Brown Brothers 
Construction and Spears Hopkins Paving for the 
developer Stonefort Ooltewah LLC; and, whereas, 
Skybrook Drive is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 
County Commission District in the Providence 
Point Subdivision on State Tax Map Number 104, 
as being 0.43 miles  leading from Roy Lane west to 
a temporary turnaround.  

   
                                                                       . The speed limit on said road shall be 25 M.P.H. 

and that violation of the same, when posted, shall be 
a misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided 
by the laws of the State. 

 



No. 1114-34 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AND 
EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH S&ME, INC, FOR GEOENVIRONMENTAL 
TESTING AND INSPECTION SERVICES NECESSARY  FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
NEW GANNS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$233,600.00.  
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 614-34 was approved by this Legislative Body on June 18, 2014 
approving hourly rates and testing service fees for the geoenvironmental services provided by 
S&ME, Inc.; and, 
 
WHEREAS,    The total amount of the contract shall not exceed $233,600.00 without approval 
by the County Commission; and, 
 
WHEREAS, There are sufficient funds available for this project in the County’s line of 
credit. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is authorized to enter into and execute an agreement with S&ME, Inc. 
to provide geoenvironmental testing and inspection services for the New Ganns Elementary 
School for an amount not to exceed $233,600.00. 
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 

























































No. 1114-35 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF TELESOURCE SERVICES, 
LLC, A-1 TELETRONICS, INC., HELLO DIRECT, OPTUS, INC., AND SYNERGY 
TELECOM, INC. FOR NORTEL TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT FOR THE PERIOD 
BEGINNING NOVEMBER 19, 2014 THROUGH NOVEMBER 18, 2015 FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit pricing 

for Nortel telephone equipment for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the unit price bids from Telesource Services, LLC, A-1 Teletronics, Inc., Hello 

Direct, Optus, Inc., and Synergy Telecom, Inc. for Nortel telephone equipment 
were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available for this project. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the unit price bids of Telesource Services, LLC, A-1 Teletronics, Inc., Hello Direct, 
Optus, Inc. and Synergy Telecom, Inc. for Nortel telephone equipment for the period 
beginning November 19, 2014 through November 18, 2015 for the Telecommunications 
Department is hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and best bids received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM  
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 





































No. 1114-36 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
November 19, 2014 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE UNIT PRICE BIDS OF MXN CORPORATION, 
PERSONAL COMPUTER SYSTEMS, INC., AND OPTUS, INC., BEGINNING 
NOVEMBER 19, 2014, THROUGH NOVEMBER 18, 2015, FOR HP DATA 
COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for contract unit 

pricing for HP data communications equipment for the Telecommunications 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bids from MXN Corporation, Personal Computer Systems, Inc., and 

OPTUS, Inc for HP data communications equipment were considered to be 
the lowest and best bids received and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available to the requisitioning 

department. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of MXN Corporation, Personal Computer Systems, Inc., and OPTUS, Inc. for 
contract unit pricing, beginning November 19, 2014 through November 18, 2015, for HP data 
communications equipment for the Telecommunications Department are hereby accepted, said 
bids being the lowest and best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any 
contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

November 19, 2014 

  
Date 

 


































	11-19-14 Agenda with Notes
	1114-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - October 22, 2014 _1231_10-22-14 Recessed
	1114-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session October 22 2014 _1232_10-22-14 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	1114-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - November 5, 2014  _1234_11-05-14 Regular
	DELEGATIONS

	1114-_S_Report_Order of Designation_1221_Order of Designation - Todd Leamon 11-10-14
	1114-_S_Report_2014 Fiscal Year Unaudited Financial Reports_1220_2014 Unaudited Financial Reports
	1114-_S_Albert Kiser_Reports Fee Office Reports_1211_0067_001
	1114-_S_Albert Kiser_Reports  Quarterly Investment Report_1210_0063_001
	1114-23_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_1235_11-19-14
	1114-23_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_1235_11-19-14 A
	1114-9A_R_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_RES. CRIMINAL COURT FURNITURE
	1114-9A_S_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_Judge Steelman_Furniture for Criminal Courts_1192_CRIMINAL COURT FURNITURE
	1114-24_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1224_2014-104
	1114-24_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1224_20141104084352673
	1114-25A_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1225_2014-119A
	1114-25A_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1225_20141104084335133
	1114-25B_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1227_2014-119B
	1114-25B_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1227_20141104084335133
	1114-25C_R_Zoning_Rezoning_1233_2014-119C
	1114-25C_S_Zoning_Rezoning_1233_0614_001
	1114-26_R_Kerry Steelman_Election Ballots_1215_RES. ELECTION BALLOTS
	1114-26_S_Kerry Steelman_Election Ballots_1215_Ballots for November 4th Election
	1114-27_R_Sheriff Hammond_Narcotics Fund Purchase_1218_Sheriff Narc Autos
	1114-28_R_Don Allen_Bermuda and Fescue Sod Contract_1222_RES. SOD CONTRACT
	1114-28_S_Don Allen_Bermuda and Fescue Sod Contract_1222_Bermuda and Fescue Sod
	1114-29_R_Albert Kiser_Fuel October 2014_1228_Fuel Resolution October 2014
	1114-29_S_Albert Kiser_Fuel October 2014_1228_October 2014 docs
	1114-30_R_Albert Kiser_Interlocal agreement with East Ridge_1229_Resolution
	1114-30_S_Albert Kiser_Interlocal agreement with East Ridge_1229_CJUS MOU  with attachment
	1114-31_R_Becky Barnes_Rape Prevention Education Program_1230_Rape Prevention Resolution 15-19
	1114-31_S_Becky Barnes_Rape Prevention Education Program_1230_Rape Prevention Contract 2019
	1114-32_R_Todd Leamon_Reroofing Health Department Golley Auditorium_1223_RES. RE-ROOF GOLLEY AUDITORIUM AT HEALTH DEPT.
	1114-32_S_Todd Leamon_Reroofing Health Department Golley Auditorium_1223_Reroof Golley Auditorium
	1114-33_R_Todd Leamon_New Subdivision Roads_1213_ProvidencePointPUD
	1114-33_S_Todd Leamon_New Subdivision Roads_1213_Providencepointresolutionbackup
	1114-34_R_Todd Leamon_GeoEnvironmental Services for Ganns Elementary School._1214_SME
	1114-34_S_Todd Leamon_GeoEnvironmental Services for Ganns Elementary School._1214_SME back up
	614-34
	Gann Elementary School Geo-CMT Proposal (1)

	1114-35_R_Bill McGriff_Nortel Telephone Equipment_1219_RES. NORTEL TELEPHONE EQUIPMENT
	1114-35_S_Bill McGriff_Nortel Telephone Equipment_1219_Nortel Telephone Equipment
	1114-36_R_Bill McGriff_HP Data Communications Equipment_1212_RES. DATA COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT CONTRACT
	1114-36_S_Bill McGriff_HP Data Communications Equipment_1212_Data Comm. Equipment Contract

